# Understanding approaches to continence care for people living with dementia in acute hospital settings: an ethnographic study

Katie Featherstone,<sup>1\*</sup> Andy Northcott,<sup>1</sup> Paula Boddington,<sup>1</sup> Deborah Edwards,<sup>2</sup> Sofia Vougioukalou,<sup>2</sup> Sue Bale,<sup>3</sup> Karen Harrison Dening,<sup>4</sup> Karen Logan,<sup>5</sup> Rosie Tope,<sup>6</sup> Daniel Kelly,<sup>2</sup> Aled Jones,<sup>2</sup> Jackie Askey<sup>6</sup> and Jane Harden<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup>The Geller Institute of Ageing and Memory, School of Biomedical Sciences, University of West London, London, UK
<sup>2</sup>School of Healthcare Sciences, College of Biomedical and Life Sciences, Cardiff University, Cardiff, UK
<sup>3</sup>Research and Development, Aneurin Bevan University Health Board, Newport, UK
<sup>4</sup>Dementia UK, London, UK
<sup>5</sup>Continence Service, Aneurin Bevan University Health Board, Newport, UK
<sup>6</sup>Independent service user researcher, Cardiff, UK

\*Corresponding author Katie.Featherstone@uwl.ac.uk

### Declared competing interests of authors: none

**Disclaimer:** This report contains transcripts of interviews conducted in the course of the research and contains language that may offend some readers.

Published June 2022 DOI: 10.3310/QUVV2680

# **Plain English summary**

Continence care for people with dementia in hospital Health and Social Care Delivery Research 2022; Vol. 10: No. 14 DOI: 10.3310/QUVV2680

NIHR Journals Library www.journalslibrary.nihr.ac.uk

# **Plain English summary**

A t any one time, up to half of all acute UK hospital beds are occupied by a person living with dementia, typically being seen for a condition unrelated to their dementia. However, such people are highly vulnerable in the hospital setting as their health can significantly and suddenly worsen during an admission. Change is needed to improve the care for people living with dementia during an acute hospital admission.

This study focused on examining a common, but poorly understood, aspect of everyday care for people living with dementia during a hospital admission, that is their continence care. For 180 days, across 12 months, we observed care in six wards in three hospitals (i.e. two wards in each hospital) across England and Wales. We use the term 'pad cultures' to describe the observed everyday and routine use of continence pads as a precautionary strategy in the care of people living with dementia (regardless of their continence and independence), a strategy viewed by staff as essential to providing safeguards, ensuring containment and preventing 'accidents' or incontinence episodes, but with an expectation that patients living with dementia will not only wear pads, but use them.

These approaches meant that ward staff could limit the unscheduled interruptions to wider ward care. In addition, the approaches meant that continence care could be reduced to keeping people in bed and at the bedside, and to the 'checking' and replacing of soiled or wet continence pads as part of other scheduled task-based organisation and delivery of bedside, care. These 'pad cultures' had significant impacts on the individuals and their identities. Ward staff described feeling abandoned with the responsibility of caring for large numbers of people living with dementia, believing that it was not possible to work in other ways to support their patient's continence.

## **Health and Social Care Delivery Research**

ISSN 2755-0060 (Print)

ISSN 2755-0079 (Online)

This journal is a member of and subscribes to the principles of the Committee on Publication Ethics (COPE) (www.publicationethics.org/).

Editorial contact: journals.library@nihr.ac.uk

This journal was previously published as *Health Services and Delivery Research* (Volumes 1–9); ISSN 2050-4349 (print), ISSN 2050-4357 (online)

The full HSDR archive is freely available to view online at www.journalslibrary.nihr.ac.uk/hsdr. Print-on-demand copies can be purchased from the report pages of the NIHR Journals Library website: www.journalslibrary.nihr.ac.uk

#### Criteria for inclusion in the Health and Social Care Delivery Research journal

Reports are published in *Health and Social Care Delivery Research* (HSDR) if (1) they have resulted from work for the HSDR programme, and (2) they are of a sufficiently high scientific quality as assessed by the reviewers and editors.

#### **HSDR** programme

The HSDR programme funds research to produce evidence to impact on the quality, accessibility and organisation of health and social care services. This includes evaluations of how the NHS and social care might improve delivery of services.

For more information about the HSDR programme please visit the website at https://www.nihr.ac.uk/explore-nihr/funding-programmes/ health-and-social-care-delivery-research.htm

#### This report

The research reported in this issue of the journal was funded by the HSDR programme or one of its preceding programmes as project number 15/136/67. The contractual start date was in November 2017. The final report began editorial review in June 2021 and was accepted for publication in November 2021. The authors have been wholly responsible for all data collection, analysis and interpretation, and for writing up their work. This report has been published following a shortened production process and, therefore, did not undergo the usual number of proof stages and opportunities for correction. The HSDR editors and production house have tried to ensure the accuracy of the authors' report and would like to thank the reviewers for their constructive comments on the final report document. However, they do not accept liability for damages or losses arising from material published in this report.

This report presents independent research funded by the National Institute for Health and Care Research (NIHR). The views and opinions expressed by authors in this publication are those of the authors and do not necessarily reflect those of the NHS, the NIHR, the HSDR programme or the Department of Health and Social Care. If there are verbatim quotations included in this publication the views and opinions expressed by the interviewees are those of the interviewees and do not necessarily reflect those of the NHS, these of the NHS, the NIHR, the HSDR programme or the Department of Health and Social Care.

Copyright © 2022 Featherstone *et al.* This work was produced by Featherstone *et al.* under the terms of a commissioning contract issued by the Secretary of State for Health and Social Care. This is an Open Access publication distributed under the terms of the Creative Commons Attribution CC BY 4.0 licence, which permits unrestricted use, distribution, reproduction and adaption in any medium and for any purpose provided that it is properly attributed. See: https://creativecommons.org/ licenses/by/4.0/. For attribution the title, original author(s), the publication source – NIHR Journals Library, and the DOI of the publication must be cited.

Published by the NIHR Journals Library (www.journalslibrary.nihr.ac.uk), produced by Prepress Projects Ltd, Perth, Scotland (www.prepress-projects.co.uk).

## NIHR Journals Library Editor-in-Chief

Professor Ken Stein Professor of Public Health, University of Exeter Medical School, UK

## NIHR Journals Library Editors

**Professor John Powell** Consultant Clinical Adviser, National Institute for Health and Care Excellence (NICE), UK, and Professor of Digital Health Care, Nuffield Department of Primary Care Health Sciences, University of Oxford, UK

**Professor Andrée Le May** Chair of NIHR Journals Library Editorial Group (HSDR, PGfAR, PHR journals) and Editor-in-Chief of HSDR, PGfAR, PHR journals

**Professor Matthias Beck** Professor of Management, Cork University Business School, Department of Management and Marketing, University College Cork, Ireland

Dr Tessa Crilly Director, Crystal Blue Consulting Ltd, UK

Dr Eugenia Cronin Consultant in Public Health, Delta Public Health Consulting Ltd, UK

**Dr Peter Davidson** Interim Chair of HTA and EME Editorial Board. Consultant Advisor, Wessex Institute, University of Southampton, UK

Ms Tara Lamont Senior Adviser, Wessex Institute, University of Southampton, UK

Dr Catriona McDaid Reader in Trials, Department of Health Sciences, University of York, UK

Professor William McGuire Professor of Child Health, Hull York Medical School, University of York, UK

Professor Geoffrey Meads Emeritus Professor of Wellbeing Research, University of Winchester, UK

**Professor James Raftery** Professor of Health Technology Assessment, Wessex Institute, Faculty of Medicine, University of Southampton, UK

**Dr Rob Riemsma** Consultant Advisor, School of Healthcare Enterprise and Innovation, University of Southampton, UK

**Professor Helen Roberts** Professor of Child Health Research, Child and Adolescent Mental Health, Palliative Care and Paediatrics Unit, Population Policy and Practice Programme, UCL Great Ormond Street Institute of Child Health, London, UK

Professor Jonathan Ross Professor of Sexual Health and HIV, University Hospital Birmingham, UK

**Professor Helen Snooks** Professor of Health Services Research, Institute of Life Science, College of Medicine, Swansea University, UK

Professor Ken Stein Professor of Public Health, University of Exeter Medical School, UK

**Professor Jim Thornton** Professor of Obstetrics and Gynaecology, Faculty of Medicine and Health Sciences, University of Nottingham, UK

Please visit the website for a list of editors: www.journalslibrary.nihr.ac.uk/about/editors

Editorial contact: journals.library@nihr.ac.uk